

INVITATION FOR BID (IFB) SEWAGE SLUDGE STABILIZATION & DISPOSAL SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: February 2, 2018

IFB NO.: 500640-FY18-25

PRE-BID MEETING February 7, 2018; 9:00 A.M.

QUESTION DEADLINE February 9, 2018; 5:00 P.M.

BIDS DUE: February 15, 2018; 3:00 P.M.

DELIVERY ADDRESS: Town of Leesburg

Procurement Division 25 West Market Street Leesburg, VA 20176

CONTACT: Octavia Andrew, CPPO, CPPB, VCO

Chief Procurement Officer Phone: 703-737-7176 Fax: 703-771-2799

E-mail: oandrew@leesburgva.gov

NOTICE OF ADDENDA: Any addenda to this IFB will be posted on the Town's Bid Board (http://www.leesburgva.gov/bidboard) and will only be emailed to those firms who have REGISTERED on this site. It is the firm's responsibility to provide a correct email address and to be aware of any addenda.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION/TITLE	<u>PAGE</u>
I. PURPOSE	3
II. BACKGROUND	3
III. SCOPE OF WORK	3
IV. CONTRACT PERIOD	7
V. BID SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS	7
VI. AWARD CRITERIA	8
VII. QUESTIONS AND INQUIRIES	8
VIII. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS	9
IX. SAMPLE CONTRACT	16
IFB SUBMISSION FORM	18
REFERENCE FORM	19
BID FORM	20
ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	21

I. PURPOSE

The Town of Leesburg (the "Town") is accepting sealed bids to establish a term contract to provide sewage sludge stabilization, hauling, and disposal services of sewage sludge produced at the Town's Water Pollution Control Facility (WPCF).

A non-mandatory pre-bid meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Wednesday, February 7, 2018 at the Utility Maintenance Building located at 1385 Russell Branch Parkway, Leesburg, Virginia 20175. It is strongly recommended that all bidders attend this meeting to gain a thorough understanding of the project.

II. BACKGROUND

The Town of Leesburg is located 35 miles west of Washington, D.C. The Town encompasses an area of 12 square miles with an estimated population of 62,500. The Town's fiscal year begins on July 1 and ends on June 30. As a government entity, the Town of Leesburg is exempt from being taxed on goods and services.

The Town of Leesburg is a full-service municipal corporation that provides the following services to Town residents and businesses: police, refuse collection and disposal, water and sewer utilities, storm water management, airport, parks and recreation, and maintenance of streets and roadways.

The Department of Utilities is responsible for providing quality water and sanitary sewer services to utility customers in a manner that balances social, environmental, and economic factors. The Water Pollution Control Division (WPCD) is responsible for the safe and efficient treatment of wastewater generated within the Leesburg service area and the subsequent stabilization and disposal of the solid wastes produced to ensure the protection of public health and the environment.

III. SCOPE OF WORK

It is the intent of this solicitation to establish an annual, as-needed term contract to provide hauling and disposal services of unstabilized sewage sludge produced at the Town's Water Pollution Control Facility (WPCF). The immediate need of the Town for hauling and disposal services is a result of a temporary change to its current sewage sludge management operation due to repair and replacement of the existing biosolids dryer operations controls and equipment. The Town estimates approximately ten (10) weeks for the dryer to be off-line. This timeframe is an estimate and the actual timeframe may vary. The Town is seeking bidders to provide a permit compliant, sustainable and environmentally responsible unstabilized sewage sludge hauling and disposal solution. It is the responsibility of the awarded bidder to provide evidence of a proposed option's viability including references from other sewage sludge stabilization or hauling/disposal facilities.

A. Sewage Sludge Information

1. The Town owns and operates a 7.5 million gallons per day (MGD) permitted capacity municipal Water Pollution Control Facility (WPCF) with current flow rates averaging approximately 4.5 MGD.

- 2. Current facility operations have two distinct methods for stabilizing sewage sludge materials:
 - a. Anaerobic digestion is employed to stabilize sewage sludge that is accumulated through the physical process of clarification. Before introduction into the clarification process the raw wastewater is screened to remove trash, debris and heavier material that is generally non organic in nature and cannot be treated biologically. "Primary Sludge" is directly separated from the raw wastewater in the Primary Clarification Process. Primary sludge is pumped from the clarifiers and is further thickened in downstream process units called "Gravity Thickeners" and conveyed to one of four Anaerobic Digesters. The Anaerobic Process reduces organic content to stabilize the sewage sludge to meet Class B requirements for disposal. The material in each digester is mixed and heated to promote stabilization within a given detention period. Each Anaerobic Digester has material pumped from it daily to a "Digested Sludge Storage Tank" where the sewage sludge is held to await mixing and dewatering in the Solids Handling or Drying phase of treatment.
 - b. Aerobic digestion is employed for sewage sludge that is generated during liquid treatment operations. The sewage sludge is developed over time as part of the stabilization process as microorganisms digest carbon based impurities. The mass of material containing food and microorganisms is retained for given detention time. Eventually the material is degraded or "stabilized" enough and is "wasted out" by pumping out a predetermined amount daily. This material is sent to the Solids Handling operation where it is thickened and stored for further disposal in the Solids Handling system. In and of itself the Aerobic material does not meet Class B criteria. Currently with equipment at hand only through the Heat Drying Process will this material achieve a level of stabilization necessary to achieve Class 'A' Biosolids classification.
- 3. Normal operation of the Solids Handling System consists of utilizing volumes of each of the two sewage sludge types to form a "Blend". Each Blend is mixed and pumped to a Belt Filter Press where cationic polymer is added into the waste stream to enhance dewatering and pressure is employed to dewater the material into a cake. The cake is conveyed to the Dryer for final stabilization into a dry, marketable product.
- 4. Bidders may use the following information in formulating their bids:
 - a. Removal of a blend of unstabilized secondary waste activated sludge and anaerobically stabilized primary sludge dewatered on a belt filter press.
 - Approximate daily quantity for removal: 17 tons Belt Filter Pressed cake sludge based on 5 days a week.

- Dewatered sludge cake solids content range: 16% 18%.
- b. For bidding purposes, pricing shall be based on the estimated 10-weeks of dewatered cake solids production of 850 wet tons of dewatered cake solids. This is an estimate only and the actual hauling and disposal services may vary depending on the needs of the Town.
- c. Removal and disposal of dewatered cake is estimated to consist of approximately 85 wet tons of material per week. Dewatering and hauling shall occur five (5) days per week (Monday Friday), excluding holidays.

B. Hauling and Disposal Services

- Services shall be provided F.O.B. Destination to and from the Town of Leesburg, Water Pollution Control Facility, 1391 Russell Branch Parkway, Leesburg, VA 20175. Additional instruction for the storage/loading site will be provided at the pre-bid meeting.
- 2. Any on-site equipment deliveries and removal of sewage sludge will be conducted between the hours of 6:30 AM to 3:00 PM Monday thru Friday.
- 3. The awarded bidder(s) is responsible for loading and unloading any and all equipment necessary in order to execute the service provided.
- 4. The unit price bid shall include all charges for services, F.O.B. Destination to / from the Town. The Town will not be responsible for any fuel surcharge, demurrage, handling, or other charges. As a government entity, the Town is tax exempt; therefore, product purchased by the Town shall be free of Federal and State sales and use tax.
- 5. During the term of the resulting contract, or any extension thereof, in the event that any situation shall arise which may cause the awarded bidder to suspend or interrupt services, the bidder shall be responsible for making arrangements for alternate means of providing services to ensure continued operations at the Water Pollution Control Facility. All costs incurred by the bidder for arranging alternate means shall be the sole responsibility of the bidder with no additional cost to the Town of Leesburg.
- The Town of Leesburg will provide storage of up to and not to exceed one weeks' worth of blended sewage sludge cake material that is generated from its Belt Filter Press.
- 7. Removal of unstabilized sewage sludge:
 - a. The Town of Leesburg will:
 - Coordinate with Contractor and the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) as required for compliance with operating permit.

- Receive sludge testing results for materials hauled and disposed of. Report results to Virginia DEQ as required by permit.
- Coordinate with awarded contractor WPCF site logistics and setup of WPCF covered storage area.
- Process Aerobic and Anaerobic sewage sludge blends through the Town's Belt Filter Press.
- Collect the process cake sludge and store onsite in designated covered storage pad.(Maximum one week of stored sludge at any time.)
- Coordinate and load trailers or hauling apparatus with the process cake sludge for hauling and disposal off site.
- For permit reporting coordinate with contractor weights of empty and full transport apparatus using WPCF scale house or other means as acceptable to contractor, Town and regulatory agencies.
- Ensure WPCF site access is unimpeded during contractual days and times allowing contractor to deliver and remove required hauling service apparatus.

b. Contractor will be responsible for:

- Coordinate with Town and the Virginia DEQ as required for compliance with the Town's operating permit.
- Perform any and all regulatory required testing for sludge removed and disposed. Report and provide testing results to Town and regulatory agencies as required by contractor permit.
- Coordinate with Town WPCD staff site logistics and setup of WPCF covered storage area.
- Provide sludge trailers or appropriate hauling apparatus to be located in the
 designated storage pad area. Contractor shall provide at minimum two
 apparatus: one trailer or hauling apparatus for loading and another as
 standby for loading at all times. Additional stabilization beyond Towns
 responsibility above shall not occur at the Town's facility.
- Provide clear instruction of maximum fill capacity of hauling apparatus.
- Provide any and all special instructions for filling, care or cleanliness of apparatus being loaded.
- Provide a schedule and comply with days for removal of sludge and hauling apparatus.
- For permit reporting coordinate with Town weights of empty and full transport apparatus using WPCF scale house or other means as acceptable to contractor, Town and regulatory agencies.
- Assume custody of sludge upon leaving WPCF site. Maintain any and all required insurances related to services being provided.
- Compliance with all required State and Federal regulatory hauling and disposal regulations.

C. Bidder Qualifications

- 1. Bidder shall be the provider of the specific service being offered for this bid.
- 2. Bidder shall be permitted/licensed by all required authorities/agencies regulating the production, transport, receipt and disposal of stabilized biosolids and/or non-stabilized sewage sludge generated by the Town of Leesburg's Water Pollution Control Facility. This includes any and all Federal, Commonwealth of Virginia, local and potential out of the Commonwealth agencies. All assigned permit/license numbers will be provided to the Town of Leesburg which will be used for reporting purposes to the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality.
- 3. Bidder shall provide in the packet a minimum of three (3) references of current municipal customers for utilizing their Hauling and Disposal Services.
- 4. Bidder shall be familiar with current plant infrastructure and be able to work within the available systems limitations in order to provide the service.
- 5. Bidder shall make her or his own determination of any and all conditions which may affect in any way the performance of the required service.
- 6. Bidder shall submit a letter with its bid that includes all the information required in this IFB. Said letter shall be signed by an authorized representative of the Bidder and authorized representative shall certify that the information is accurate and correct to the best of the Bidder's knowledge.

IV. CONTRACT PERIOD

The period of the contract will be one (1) year beginning March 1, 2018 and ending on February 28, 2019. Upon mutual agreement of both parties, this Contract may be renewed for up to four (4) additional one-year renewal periods. The bid price during the initial contract period shall remain firm. It should be noted that renewable Contracts might be continued each fiscal year only after funding appropriations and program approval have been granted by the Leesburg Town Council. In the event that the Leesburg Town Council does not grant necessary funding appropriation/program approval, then the affected multi-year Contract becomes null and void, effective July 1 of the fiscal year for which such approvals have been denied.

The awarded contractor will be notified and must have all equipment and disposal approvals in place within two weeks of the date removal services will begin.

V. BID SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS

All bids must be submitted in an appropriately marked and sealed envelope, to include one (1) original and one (1) copy of the following documents:

1. IFB Submission Form (Page 18)

- 2. Reference Form (Page 19)
- 3. Bid Form (Page 20)
- 4. Addenda Acknowledgement (Page 21)

Bids must be received by the Procurement Officer, Town of Leesburg, 25 West Market Street, Leesburg, VA 20176 no later than 3:00 p.m. on Thursday, February 15, 2018.

Bids in the form of telegrams, telephone, facsimiles or telex messages will not be accepted. The same person, firm, or corporation may submit only one bid. The submittal of more than one bid shall be cause for rejection by the Town of all bids submitted by the person, firm, or corporation.

All blanks, except signatures, on the Bid Form shall be legibly completed in ink.

Where so indicated in the Bid Form, sums shall be expressed in both words and figures, and in case of discrepancy between the two, the amount written in words shall govern.

The signer of the Bid must initial interlineations, alterations, and erasures.

The Town shall have the right to reject any bid that does not provide all requested information.

Each copy of the Bid shall include the legal name of the Bidder and a statement that the Bidder is a sole proprietor, partnership, corporation, or other legal entity. Each copy shall be signed by the person or persons legally authorized to bind the Bidder to a contract. A Bid by a corporation shall further give the State of incorporation and have the corporate seal affixed. A Bid submitted by an agent shall have a current power of attorney attached certifying the agent's authority to bind the Bidder. A bid submitted by a foreign corporation shall be accompanied by evidence of authorization to conduct business in Virginia.

VI. AWARD CRITERIA

The Town intends to award this contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder who is authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth of Virginia with demonstrated experience similar in nature to that being requested herein.

The Town reserves the right to award in whole or in part, to make multiple awards, or to waive informalities in the process of awarding this contract.

The contents of the bid submitted by the successful bidder will become a part of any contract awarded as a result of this IFB. The successful bidder shall be expected to sign a contract with the Town. Additional terms and provisions may be included in the contract, a sample copy of which is enclosed.

VII. QUESTIONS AND INQUIRIES

Unless otherwise instructed, the Procurement Contact is the sole point of contact for questions concerning this IFB. Questions concerning this IFB must be made in writing to the Procurement

Contact listed on the cover page of the IFB. Questions must be received by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, February 9, 2018.

A formal addendum responding to all questions received by the deadline will be made available no later than five business days before the bid due date. Additional clarifications to the specifications will also be in the form of a written addendum. All addenda will be posted on the Town's website. Such addenda will become part of the contract documents. Verbal instructions are not binding and will not form a part of the bid documents. It is the bidder's responsibility to obtain all addenda from the Town's website: http://www.leesburgva.gov/bidboard.

VIII. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

A. General Terms and Conditions

- 1. **Bid Binding for Sixty (60) Days**: Bidder agrees that this Bid shall be valid and may not be withdrawn for a period of sixty (60) calendar days after the due date.
- 2. **Late Bids**: Bids received after the time specified on the cover page of this IFB will not be accepted and will be returned unopened, provided a return address is visible.
- 3. **Acceptance or Rejection of Bids**: The Town reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids in whole or in part and to waive minor informalities in the process of awarding this contract.
- 4. **Competition Intended**: It is the Town's intent that this invitation for bid permits competition. It shall be the bidder's responsibility to advise the Procurement Officer in writing if any language, requirements, specifications, etc., or any combinations thereof, inadvertently restricts or limits the requirements stated in this IFB to a single source. The Procurement Officer must receive such notification at least ten (10) business days before the due date.
- 5. **Understanding of Specifications**: Bidders shall thoroughly examine and be familiar with the Town specifications. The failure or omission of any bidder to receive or examine this document shall in no way relieve any bidder of obligations with respect to this bid or the subsequent contract. The submission of a bid shall be taken as <u>prima facie</u> evidence of compliance with this paragraph.
- 6. **Inquiries Concerning Specifications**: Questions concerning this IFB must be made in writing to the Procurement Contact listed on the cover page of the IFB.
- 7. **ADA Reasonable Accommodation Clause**: If you need any reasonable accommodation for any type of disability in order to participate in this procurement, please contact the Procurement Officer at least ten (10) business days before the bid due date.

- 8. **Costs Incurred in Responding:** This solicitation does not commit the Town to pay any costs incurred in the preparation and submission of bids, or to procure or contract for services defined herein.
- 9. **Employment Discrimination Prohibited:** During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:
 - a. The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex or national origin, age, disability, or any other basis prohibited by state law relating to discrimination in employment. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
 - b. The contractor, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, will state that such contractor is an equal opportunity employer.
 - c. Notices, advertisements and solicitations placed in accordance with federal law, rule or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of meeting the requirements of this section.

The contractor will include the provisions of the foregoing paragraphs a, b and c in every subcontract or purchase order of over \$10,000 so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.

- 10. **Disposition of Bids:** All materials submitted in response to this IFB will become the property of the Town. One (1) copy of each bid shall be retained for official files and will become a public record. These records will be available for public inspection after award of the contract. It is understood that the bid will become a part of the official file on this matter without obligation on the part of the Town except as to the disclosure restrictions contained in Section 11. "Trade Secrets and Proprietary Information Disclosure".
- 11. **Trade Secrets and Proprietary Information Disclosure:** In compliance with the Town's Procurement Policies, all bids will be available for public inspection. Trade secrets and proprietary information submitted by a bidder in connection with procurement shall not be subject to public disclosure under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act. However, the bidder must invoke the protection of this section before or upon submission of the data or other materials, and must identify the specific area or scope of data or other materials to be protected and state the reasons why protection is necessary. An all-inclusive statement that the entire bid is proprietary is unacceptable. A statement that the costs are to be protected is unacceptable.

- 12. **Laws and Regulations:** The bidder's attention is directed to the fact that all applicable Commonwealth of Virginia laws, municipal ordinances and the rules and regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over the contract shall apply to the contract throughout, and they will be considered to be included in the contract the same as though herein written out it full.
- 13. **License Requirement:** All firms doing business for the Town are required to be licensed in accordance with the Town's "Business, Professional, and Occupational Licensing (BPOL) Tax" Ordinance. Wholesale and retail merchants without a business location in Leesburg, VA are exempt from this requirement. Questions concerning the BPOL Tax should be directed to the Department of Finance, telephone **703-771-2717**. Indicate the BPOL license number on the bid form.
- 14. **Ethics in Public Contracting:** The bidder agrees that it will adhere to Article 6 "Ethics in Public Contracting" requirements set forth in the Virginia Public Procurement Act.
- 15. **Safety:** All contractors and subcontractors performing services for the Town are required and shall comply with all Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), State and County Safety and Occupation Health Standards and any other applicable rules and regulations. Also, all contractors and subcontractors shall be held responsible for the safety of their employees and any unsafe acts or conditions that may cause injury or damage to any persons or property within and around the work site area under this contract.
- 16. **Termination:** Subject to the provisions below, the contract may be terminated by the Town upon thirty (30) days advance written notice to the other party. If any work or service hereunder is in progress, but not completed as of the date of termination, then this contract may be extended upon written approval of the Town until said work or services are completed and accepted.

<u>Termination for Convenience</u> – In the event that this contract is terminated or cancelled upon request and for the convenience of the Town, without the required thirty (30) days advance written notice, then the Town shall negotiate reasonable termination costs, if applicable.

<u>Termination for Cause</u>: – Termination by the Town for cause, default or negligence on the part of the contractor shall be excluded from the foregoing provision; termination costs, if any, shall not apply. The thirty (30) days advance notice requirement is waived in the event of Termination for Cause. In the event of default by the bidder, we reserve the right to procure the commodities and/or services from other sources, and hold the bidder liable for any excess cost occasioned thereby. If, however, public necessity requires use of commodities and/or service not conforming to the specifications they may be accepted and payment therefore shall be made at a proper reduction in price.

<u>Termination Due to Unavailability of Funds in Succeeding Fiscal Years</u> – When funds are not appropriated or otherwise made available to support continuation of performance in a subsequent fiscal year, the contract shall be cancelled and the contractor shall be reimbursed for the reasonable value of any non-recurring costs incurred but not amortized in the price of the supplies or services delivered under the contract.

- 17. **Non-Assignment of Contract:** The contractor shall not assign the contract, or any portion thereof, without the advanced written permission of the Procurement Officer, such permission not to be unreasonably withheld.
- 18. **Use by Other Localities:** Bidders are advised that the resultant contract may be extended, with the authorization of the bidder, to other public bodies or public agencies or institutions of the United States to permit their use of the contract at the same prices and/or discounts and terms and conditions of the resulting contract. If any other public body decides to use the final contract, the Contractor(s) must deal directly with that public body concerning the placement of orders, issuance of the purchase orders, contractual disputes, invoicing and payment. The Town of Leesburg acts only as the "Contracting Agent" for these public bodies. Failure to extend a contract to any public body will have no effect on consideration of your bid.

It is the Contractor's responsibility to notify the public body(s) of the availability of the contract.

Other public bodies desiring to use this contract must make their own legal determination as to whether the use of this contract is consistent with their laws, regulations, and other policies.

Each public body has the option of executing a separate contract with the Contractor(s). Public bodies may add terms and conditions required by statute, ordinances, and regulations, to the extent that they do not conflict with the contract's terms and conditions. If, when preparing such a contract, the general terms and conditions of the public body are unacceptable to the Contractor, the Contractor may withdrawal its extension of the award to that public body.

The Town of Leesburg shall not be held liable for any costs or damages incurred by another public body as a result of any award extended to that Public Body by the Contractor.

- 29. **Modification of the Contract:** This contract may be modified by approved a contract modification or change order signed by both parties in accordance with the VPPA.
- 20. **Discrimination Prohibited; Participation of Small and Minority-Owned Business:** The Town shall not discriminate against a bidder because of race,

religion, color, sex, national origin, age, disability, or any other basis prohibited by state law relating to discrimination in employment.

21. **Drug-free Workplace to be maintained by Contractor; Required Contract Provisions:** All public bodies shall include in every contract over \$10,000 the following provisions:

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees to (i) provide a drug-free workplace for the contractor's employees; (ii) post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or marijuana is prohibited in the contractor's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition; (iii) state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor that the contractor maintains a drug-free workplace; and (iv) include the provisions of the foregoing clauses in every subcontract or purchase order of over \$10,000, so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.

For the purposes of this section, "drug-free workplace" means a site for the performance of work done in connection with a specific contract awarded to a contractor in accordance with this chapter, the employees of whom are prohibited from engaging in the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of any controlled substance or marijuana during the performance of the contract.

- 22. Collusion Among Bidders: More than one bid from an individual, firm, partnership, corporation or association under the same or different name will be rejected. Reasonable grounds for believing that a bidder has an interest in more than one bid for the work contemplated will cause rejection of all bids in which the bidder is interested. Any or all bids will be rejected if there is any reason for believing that collusion exists among the bidders. Participants in such collusion may not be considered in future bids for the same work. The signer of the bid must declare that all persons, companies and parties interested in the contract as principals are named therein; that the bid is made without collusion with any other person, persons, company or parties submitting a bid; that it is in all respects fair and in good faith without collusion or fraud; and that the signer of the bid has authority to contractually bind the bidder. See Bidder Submission Form.
- 23. **Town Employees:** No employee of the Town shall be admitted to any share or part of this contract or to any benefit that may arise there from.
- 24. **Qualification of Bidders:** Each bidder may be required, before the award of any contract, to show to the complete satisfaction of the Evaluation Team that it has the necessary facilities, abilities, and financial resources to furnish the service or material specified herein in a satisfactory manner, and the bidder may also be

- required to show past history and reference which will enable the Evaluation Team to be satisfied as to the bidder's qualifications. Failure to qualify according to the foregoing requirements will justify bid rejection.
- 25. **Liability:** The successful bidder will not be held responsible for failure to perform the duties and responsibilities imposed by the contract due to legal strikes, fires, civil disobedience, riots, rebellions, acts of God and similar occurrences beyond the control of the successful bidder that make performance impossible or illegal, unless otherwise specified in the agreement.
- 26. **Protest Of Award Or Decision To Award:** A bidder may protest an award or decision to award a contract under procedures as set forth in the Virginia Public Procurement Act.
- 27. **Ethics In Public Contracting:** This specification incorporates by reference, but is not limited to, the provisions of law contained in the Virginia Conflict of Interest Act, the Virginia Governmental Frauds Act, Articles 2 and 3 of Chapter 10 of title 18.2 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, and the Town Procurement Policy.
- 28. **Faith-Based Organizations:** The Town of Leesburg does not discriminate against faith-based organizations.
- 29. **Insurance Requirements:** Bidder shall secure at its own expense general liability insurance in an amount not less than \$1,000,000 solely contained in a Commercial General Liability Policy or in combination with an Umbrella or Excess Policy. Included shall be coverage for Bodily Injury and Property Damage resulting from the operations, products, and completed operations of the contractor.

Bidder shall also carry automobile insurance in an amount not less than \$1,000,000 solely contained in a Commercial Auto Policy or in combination with an Umbrella or Excess Policy. Bidder shall also carry Workers Compensation insurance, which meets the statutory requirements of the Commonwealth of Virginia. In addition, bidder shall also carry other insurance coverage deemed by the Town to be appropriate to his agreement.

The above-mentioned coverage shall be placed with an insurance carrier licensed to do business in the Commonwealth of Virginia. The carrier must have an AM Best Rating of A or better. A Certificate of Insurance identifying coverage and naming the Town of Leesburg as additional insured shall be furnished to the Town. Liability coverage shall contain wording prohibiting cancellation of coverage, failure to renew, or reduction in limit without the insurer first giving 30 days prior written notice of such action to the Town.

30. **Payment Clauses:** Pursuant to Section 2.2-4354 of the VPPA, within seven days after receipt of amounts paid to the bidder by the Town for work performed by the subcontractor under the resulting contract the Bidder will:

- a. Pay the subcontractor for the proportionate share of the total payment received from the agency attributable to the work performed by the subcontractor under that contract; or
- b. Notify the agency and subcontractor, in writing, of his intention to withhold all or a part of the subcontractor's payment with the reason for nonpayment.

Individual contractors must provide their social security numbers and proprietorships, partnerships, and corporations to provide their federal employer identification numbers.

The bidder will pay interest to the subcontractor on all amounts owed by the bidder that remain unpaid after seven days following receipt by the bidder of payment from the Town for work performed by the subcontractor under that contract, except for amounts withheld as allowed in subdivision 1.

"Unless otherwise provided under the terms of this contract, interest shall accrue at the rate of one percent per month."

The bidder will include in each of its subcontracts a provision requiring each subcontractor to include or otherwise be subject to the same payment and interest requirements with respect to each lower-tier subcontractor.

A contractor's obligation to pay an interest charge to a subcontractor pursuant to the payment clause in this section shall not be construed to be an obligation of the Town. A contract modification shall not be made for the purpose of providing reimbursement for the interest charge. A cost reimbursement claim shall not include any amount for reimbursement for the interest charge.

- 31. **Prime Vendor Responsibilities:** Bidders may propose services that are provided by others, but any services proposed must meet all of the requirements of this IFB. If the bid includes services provided by others, the bidder will be required to act as the prime contractor for all such items and must assume full responsibility for the procurement delivery and quality of such services. The bidder will be considered the sole point of contact with regard to all stipulations, including payment of all charges and the meeting of all requirements of this IFB.
- 32. **Purchase Orders:** A purchase order will be enclosed with the resulting contract or will be issued shortly thereafter, and will become an integral part of the resulting contract. The purchase order indicates that sufficient funds have been obligated as required by Title 15 of the Code of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and assures distribution of the necessary receiving reports. The purchase order does not supersede any provisions of the resulting contract. Performance time and dates are determined solely by the contract and any modification thereto. Services are not to begin until receipt of the purchase order and/or other notification by the Town's Procurement Officer or designee.

IX. SAMPLE CONTRACT

CONTRACT NO. [SOLICITATION TITLE]

	CONTRACT (the "CONTRACT") is made this day of, 2016, by and between the VN OF LEESBURG, VIRGINIA (the "TOWN"), a municipal corporation, and
	, a having a usual place of business at
	(the "CONTRACTOR").
	Contractor and the Town, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and agreements herein ained, agree as follows:
1.	<u>Provision of Services</u> . The Contractor hereby agrees to provide the following services to the Town:
2.	[DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE] Contract Documents. The Contract Documents consist of this Contract, the RFQ, the Town Purchase Order and the quote, dated Where the terms of this Contract and the Contractor's quote are at variance, the provisions of this Contract shall prevail.
3.	<u>Contract Term.</u> The term of this Contract shall consist of the period of time [PERIOD OF TIME].
4.	<u>Contract Amount</u> In return for the services identified above, the Town certifies that sufficient

- funds are budgeted and appropriated and shall compensate the Contractor [\$ AMOUNT].

 The total project is expected not to exceed [\$ AMOUNT].
- **Method of Payment.** The Contractor shall submit invoices to the Town with all supporting documentation and shall be reimbursed within [PAYMENT TERMS OR SCHEDULE] or receipt of invoice or completion of services, whichever occurs later.

Invoice must detail the hours worked and services performed and be mailed to the address specified below and must reference the purchase order number:

Town of Leesburg Department of Utilities 1391 Russell Branch Parkway Leesburg, VA 20175

- **Applicable Law and Courts.** This contract resulting from this solicitation shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the Circuit Court of Loudoun County. The Contractor shall comply with applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.
- **Assignment of Contract.** This Contract shall not be assignable by the Contractor in whole or in part without the prior written consent of the Town.

- **8.** Audit. The Contractor shall retain all books, records, and other documents relative to this Contract for five (5) years after final payment, or until audited by the Town, whichever is sooner. The agency, its authorized agents, and/or State auditors shall have full access to and the right to examine any of said materials during said period.
- **Indemnification.** Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Town, its officers, agents, and employees from any claims, damages and actions of any kind or nature, whether at law or in equity, arising from or caused by any services of any kind or nature furnished by the Contractor, provided that such liability is not attributable to the sole negligence of the Town.
- **Notice.** The following persons shall be contact persons for the parties, and notice given them, by certified return receipt requested mail to the addresses shown, shall constitute valid notice under the requirements of this agreement:
 - 1. For TOWN:
 - 2. For CONTRACTOR:

The parties may amend such addresses by written notice to the opposite party at the given address.

- **11.** <u>Termination by Town without Cause.</u> The Town may terminate this Contract for any reason upon ten (10) days notice and upon payment of any and all sums already earned under the terms of Paragraphs numbered 4 and 5 of this Contract and reasonable expenses incurred in reliance upon the Contract.
- **Integration Clause.** This contract shall constitute the whole agreement between the parties. There are no promises, terms, conditions, or obligations other than those contained herein, and this Contract shall supersede all previous communications, representations or agreements, written or verbal, between the parties hereto related to the subject of this Contract.

In witness whereof, the parties below execute this Contract as of the date first above written.

TOWN OF LEESBURG	[ENTER NAME OF CONTRACTOR]
AUTHORIZED	AUTHORIZED
SIGNATURE	SIGNATURE
NAME	NAME
TITLE	TITLE
DATE	DATE

IFB SUBMISSION FORM IFB NO. 500640-FY18-25

SECTION I – COMPANY IDENTIFICATION AND OWNERSHIP DISCLOSURE

Company	
Address	
Contact Person	Title No. Email
Telephone NoFax	NoEmail
Organized under the laws of the State of	
Principal place of business at	
Federal Id Number	Registered Agent
State Corp. Commission Registration No	Registered Agent(attach Certificate of Good Standing)
List the names and addresses of all persons h Name	aving ownership of 3% or more in the company: Address
resulting from a formal solicitation issued by such certification, shall be a prerequisite to the SECTION II – EMPLOYEES NOT TO BEN firm, partnership, or corporation, that no emp	of policy, that any consultant or firm receiving a contract of award the Town shall make certification as specified below. Receipt of the award of contract and payment thereof. WEFIT - I (we) hereby certify that if the contract is awarded to our ployee of the Town of Leesburg, or members of his/her immediate thas received or been promised, directly or indirectly, any financial
benefit, by way of fee, commission, finder's account of the act of awarding and/or execution	fee, political contribution or any similar form of remuneration or ing this contract.
Section 2.1-639.2 et seq., the State and Local	Γ - This solicitation is subject to the provisions of VA Code Ann. I Government Conflict of Interests Act. The Supplier [] is [] is existence of any potential organizational conflict of interest.
connection with any corporation, firm, or per or equipment and is in all respects fair and violation of the State and federal law and ca hereby certify that the responses to the above	at this offer is made without prior understanding, agreement, or son submitting an offer for the same services, materials, supplies, without collusion or fraud. I understand collusive bidding is a an result in fines, prison sentences, and civil damage awards. It representations, certifications, and other statements are accurate tions of this RFP and certify that I am authorized to sign for my
Signature	Date
Name (Printed)	Title

BIDDER MUST RETURN THIS FORM WITH THEIR BID

REFERENCE FORM

QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDER: Bidder must have the capability and capacity in all respects to fully satisfy the contractual requirements.

	cate the length of time you have Years,	been in business providing this type of service and/or product. Months
	vide a list of at least three (3) accords and/or services to in the past to	ounts, preferably governmental that your firm has provided similar welve (12) months.
1.	FIRM NAME:	
	ADDRESS:	
	PHONE NO:	TITLE: FAX NO:
2.	FIRM NAME:	
	ADDRESS:	
	CONTACT PERSON:	TITLE:
	PHONE NO:	FAX NO:
	EMAIL:	
3.	FIRM NAME:	
	CONTACT PERSON:	TITLE:
	PHONE NO:	FAX NO:
	EMAIL:	
4.	FIRM NAME:	
	ADDRESS:	
		TITLE:
	PHONE NO:	FAX NO:
	EMAIL:	
5.	FIRM NAME:	
	ADDRESS:	
	PHONE NO:	FAX NO:
	T'N A A II	

BID FORM

This is not a contract. Submit bid on this form.

IFB NO. 500640-FY18-25 SLUDGE STABILIZATION & DISPOSAL SERVICES			Bid Due Date: February 15, 2018 by 3:00 P.M.		
Bidder	Bidder Information:		•	Delivery Within Days ARO Terms % No of Days or NET 30 Days F.O.B. Destination	
Instructions to Bidders: Bids must be sealed with appropriate markings on the outside of the envelope or container. Quote lowest possible price on items or services listed below. Bidder's price shall include all freight, delivery & shipping charges to Town Site. Advise what discount, if any, will be allowed for payment within a specified time. Terms must be specified. Complete all items. Subject to terms and conditions contained in the Invitation For Bid.					
Item	Description	Estimated Quantity	Unit of Measure	Unit Price (per wet ton)	Extended Price (Est. Quantity X Unit Price)
1	Hauling and Disposal of Non-Stabilized Dewatered Sewage Sludge Cake	850	Wet Ton	\$	\$
TOTAL BID PRICE (Extended Price of Item#1) \$					
Instructions to Bidders: Bids must be sealed with appropriate markings on the outside of the envelope or container. Complete all items or your bid may not be considered. Bidder guarantees product or services will meet or exceed specifications and are subject to the terms and conditions contained in the Invitation for Bid. Prices shall include all labor, supervision, tools, equipment, transportation (including fuel, tolls, etc.), permit and licenses, and management to perform the services described herein. Material acquisition, handling and delivery, or for movement of Contractor-owned or rental equipment shall also be included in the proposed prices.					
Author	ized Signature:	Title	e:	Da	ate:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA

Bidder acknowledges recei of this bid.	pt of the following ADDENDA, which	ch have been considered in the preparation
No	Dated:	

No. _____ Dated: ____